
FINAL               

                   

                               

            City of Neenah 
         COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA (1) 

               Wednesday, December 21, 2016 - 7:00 p.m. 
             Neenah City Hall                     

              Council Chambers 
 

I. Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
PRESENTATION OF APPRECIATION PLAQUE TO BRUCE LEVENHAGEN (By Cities of 
Neenah, Menasha and N-M Firefighters Local 275) 
 
STAFF PRESENTATION ON PAPERLESS AGENDA ALTERNATIVE 
 
II. Introduction and Confirmation of Mayor’s Appointment(s).  (None) 
 
III. Approval of Council Proceedings.  (None) 
 
IV. Public Hearings. (None) 

 
V. Plan Commission report pertaining to the public hearings.  (None) 
 
VI. Consideration of ordinances pertaining to the public hearings.  (None) 

   
VII. Consideration of resolution pertaining to the public hearings.  (None) 
 
VIII. Public Forum.  

A. Speakers should give their name and residential address (not mailing address) and 
are allowed five minutes to speak on any topic. 

 
IX. Mayor/Council consideration of public forum issues. 
 

X. Consent Agenda. 
A. Approve Beverage Operator License Application for: Sally A. Bauer, Kami J. Friebel, 

Joshua A. Malson, Deanna L. Raatz, Sandra A. Sha and Jonathan J. Trepanier.  
(PSSC) 

B. Approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for Don Father 
Games, 1152 Westowne Drive, Don A. Pavelka, owner.  (PSSC) 

C. Approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for J. Anthony 
Jewelers, 220 S. Commercial Street, Joseph A. Ziemba, owner.  (PSSC) 

D. Approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for Holt's Jewelry, 
121 W. Wisconsin Avenue, Mark S. Holt, owner.  (PSSC) 

E. Approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license application for Great 
Estates, 1554 S. Commercial Street, Michael C. Russell, owner.  (PSSC) 

F. Approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for EcoATM, LLC, 
1155 W. Winneconne Avenue, Hunter Bjorkman, owner.  (PSSC) 

G. Approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for AE Jewelers, 
971 S. Green Bay Road, Richard L. Meyer, owner.  (PSSC) 



Council Agenda 
December 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
F:\OPENRECD\_CLERK-Council\Agendas\2016\Agenda161221.docx 

H. Approve the Beverage Operator License Application (new) for Alexander 
Rasmussen contingent upon payment of a delinquent payment of $10.00 and any 
other outstanding City fees.  (PSSC) 

I. (RollCall-Pro) 
 
XI. Reports of standing committees and consideration thereof. 

A. Regular Public Services and Safety Committee meeting of December 13, 2016:  
(Chairman Bates)  (Minutes can be found on the City web site) (2) No Report 

B. Regular Finance and Personnel Committee meeting of December 12, 2016:  
(Chairman Pollnow)  (Minutes can be found on the City web site) (3) 
1. Committee recommends Council authorize the appropriate City Officials to 

enter into an Inter-Agency Agreement with the City of Oshkosh to provide 
Weights and Measures Inspections, documentation and reporting services 
in a not to exceed amount of $16,000 with said funds coming from the 2016 
Weights and Measures Operating Budget.  (RollCall-Pro)      

2. Committee recommends Council the sale of land adjacent to the Oak Street 
Bridge to Philip Langohr, 302 E. Wisconsin Avenue, for the agreed net price 
of $5,056.  (Motion to refer to the Plan Commission)  (RollCall-Pro)      

3. Committee recommends Council approve the offer to purchase in the 
amount of $130,000 for the acquisition of 402 West North Water Street to 
facilitate the Loop the Lake/Trestle project plus $10,000 for demolition on 
the site, with the $140,000 total cost funded by repurposing unspent TIF 10 
funds that were initially borrowed for redevelopment assistance.  (RollCall-
Pro) 

4. Committee recommends Council authorize proceeding with One Source 
Technologies to implement controlled access at City Hall at a cost not to 
exceed $47,000.  Funding provided by Information Systems 2014 CIP carry 
forward funds of $25,000 and Preparedness Grant funds of $22,000.  
(RollCall-Pro) 

5. Committee recommends Council authorize the cancellation of the Accela 
Contract pursuant to ¶4.1 of the Accela Contract.  (RollCall-Pro) 

 
XII. Reports of special committees and liaisons and various special projects committees and 

consideration thereof.         
A. Regular Plan Commission meeting of December 13, 2016:  (Cancelled)  
B. Board of Public Works meeting of December 13, 2016:  (Vice Chairman Hillstrom) 

(Minutes can be found on the City web site)   (4) 
1. Information Only Items: 

a) The Board approved Change Order No. 5 for Contract 1-16 
Miscellaneous Sewer and Water Main Construction and Street 
Construction on Franklin Avenue, Columbian Avenue, Oak Street, 
Higgins Avenue, Division Street, Henry Street, Lincoln Street, Meade 
Street and Maple Street to Van Straten Construction Co., Inc., Green 
Bay in the amount of $168,184.06.                

2. Council Action Items: 
a) The Board recommends Council approve the Final Payment for 

Contract 1-16 Miscellaneous Sewer and Water Main Construction 
and Street Construction on Franklin Avenue, Columbian Avenue, 



Council Agenda 
December 21, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
F:\OPENRECD\_CLERK-Council\Agendas\2016\Agenda161221.docx 

Oak Street, Higgins Avenue, Division Street, Henry Street, Lincoln 
Street, Meade Street and Maple Street to Van Straten Construction 
Co., Inc., Green Bay in the amount of $175,119.86.  (5)  (RollCall-
Pro) 

b) The Board recommends Council approve the Final Payment for 
Contract 4-16 Concrete Pavement and Sidewalk Repair to Fischer 
Ulman Construction, Appleton in the amount of $163,136.62.  (6)  
(RollCall-Pro) 

c) The Board recommends Council approve the Final Payment for 
Contract 5-16 HMA Patching Repair to Northeast Asphalt in the 
amount of $138,237.74.  (7) (RollCall-Pro) 

C. Community Development Authority Update 
1. Update from the CDA – Chris Haese 

D. Sustainable Neenah Committee 
1. Report from the Sustainable Neenah Committee – Ald. Kunz 

E. Library Board 
1. Report from the Library Board – Ald. Erickson 

 
XIII. Presentation of ordinances and resolutions and consideration thereof.  (None) 

 
XIV. Presentation of petitions. 

A. Any other petition received by the City Clerk’s Office after distribution of the agenda. 
  
XV. Council Directives. (8)       
 
XVI. Unfinished Business. 
 
XVII. Presentation of communications, claims, memorials, accounts and other new business. 

A. Mayor Kaufert’s appointment to fill the expired terms of Gail Dolan, Robert Wedge 
and John Rather on the Board of Appeals – terms expire January 2020.  (To be 
considered at the January 4, 2017 Council meeting) 

B. Mayor Kaufert’s appointment to fill the unexpired term of Joyce Speech on the Loan 
Assistance Board, term expires June 2018.  (To be considered at the January 4, 
2017 Council meeting)   

C. Any announcements/questions that may legally come before the Council.  
D. Adjournment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Neenah City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged.  If special 
accommodations are needed please contact the Neenah City Clerk’s Office  

at 886-6100 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.” 
 
 



CITY OF NEENAH 
PUBLIC SERVICES AND SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING 

Tuesday, December 13, 2016 - 7:00 PM 
Hauser Room - City Administration Building 

 
Present:  Aldermen Hillstrom, Bates, Lang, Lendrum and Stevenson 
 
Also Present:  Mayor Kaufert, Director of Public Works Kaiser, Police Chief Wilkinson, Traffic 
Engineer Merten, Alderman Pollnow, Alderman Boyette, Tim Florek, Jared Searl, Mason Tecca 
 
 
Minutes:  Motion/Second/Carried Lendrum/Stevenson to approve the minutes of the 
November 29, 2016, Regular Meeting and the December 7, 2016, Special Meeting.  All 
voting aye. 
 
Public Appearances:  Jared Searl, 600 Kessler Drive, addressed the Committee with 
concerns related to Horace Mann Middle School drop-off and pick-up traffic.  He noted the 
impact of parent parking on the ability of traffic to get through on Oak Street and Kessler Drive 
and student safety concerns.  He questioned if other procedures could be implemented.  
Director Kaiser and Traffic Engineer Merten indicated that they would contact the school 
officials to discuss the matter. 
 
 
Franklin Avenue Construction - Resident Concerns:  Tim Florek, 508 E. Franklin Avenue, 
addressed the Committee to review his concerns with the construction operations on Franklin 
Avenue this past year.  He indicated that he had a written statement that he wished to include 
in the meeting minutes (attached).  He outlined areas that he felt needed improvement for 
projects going forward.  He stated that consistent, accurate communication of project activities 
could have alleviated a great deal of the frustration that residents felt.  He suggested that 
project timelines be made available to allow residents to gauge project progress.  He noted 
occasions when he had contacted the Public Works office for information or to relay concerns 
and also noted calls made to the contractor.  He suggested that bid costs be provided to 
affected property owners.  He related a concern with a large fluctuation in bid pricing for two 
bid items this year as compared to prior years.  He encouraged that project managers maintain 
a higher degree of contact with residents on the project.  He suggested a more formalized 
process to address any issues that special needs individuals may have during construction.  
He suggested a post-project evaluation and encouraged formal training for project managers. 
 
On questioning from the Committee he reiterated that the frustration was mainly in not knowing 
what was supposed to be happening.  He stated that the weekly email updates did not provide 
helpful information about why things were or were not happening.  He suggested providing 
additional detail about the contractor’s schedule. 
 
Ald. Lendrum noted that the tenant of her property that was on the project provided her 
information about what was happening.  She noted his frustration with the length of time the 
project was taking but that he didn’t provide any other information.  She noted that she didn’t 
receive any calls during the project even though she had provided her card to affected 
residents. 
  



Public Services and Safety Committee Meeting 
December 13, 2016 
Page 2 
 
On questioning from Mayor Kaufert, Director Kaiser outlined the manner in which the number 
of construction working days was developed for a street.  He noted that the number of days 
was unique to the extent of work require on each street.  He discussed the possibility of 
compressing the number of working days allowed and noted circumstances that may limit the 
feasibility of compressing the number of working days. 
 
Mayor Kaufert expressed his appreciation to Mr. Florek for bringing his concerns forward and 
assured him that this will help improve projects in the future.  Ald. Stevenson noted that Director 
Kaiser had outlined several process changes in his December 7 memo and requested that he 
inform the Committee of how those changes are being implemented. 
 
 
Downtown Parking Policies and Guidelines Proposal:  Traffic Engineer Merten reviewed the 
downtown parking policies and guidelines proposal outlined in his December 8, 2016, memo.  
He noted that the memo outlined the changes in the current proposal from those presented to 
the Downtown Parking Task Force at their December 2 meeting. 
 
Traffic Engineer Merten reviewed the recommendations for time limited zones.  Zones will be 
created for 2-Hour, 3-Hour and 4-Hour parking.  Committee noted that the major change that 
this presents must be coupled with aggressive enforcement in order to influence the behavior 
of downtown employees.  He confirmed that a periodic reviews of the restrictions will occur in 
order to determine if they have been having the desired effect.  He noted that the task force 
recommendation was to exempt only Sundays and holidays from enforcement for time 
restricted areas. 
 
Traffic Engineer Merten reviewed the citations provisions.  Citations would be grouped into one 
of three categories.  Each category would have its own fine structure.  Citation classes B and 
C would have an escalating fine structure.  The first citation of a Class C violation would be a 
warning not a fine.  Only multiple citations for the same type of violation would result in the 
escalating fine.  The fine level was based on credit card charges, which are embedded in the 
fine and on modelling of citation issuance and revenue generation.  It was noted that three of 
the Class C violations should be assigned as Class B violations since they could potentially 
require immediate towing: No Stopping, No Parking, and Unauthorized Parking.  Chief 
Wilkinson discussed procedures to address abandoned vehicle complaints. 
 
Mayor Kaufert noted the fine escalation provision for a 365 day reset.  He noted that there was 
discussion at the task force meeting of reducing that amount of time to 11 months.  It was noted 
that the parking task force rejected that change and preferred the 365 day reset. 
 
Mayor Kaufert expressed a concern with the fine amount for Class B and Class C citations.  
The proposed fine for a first Class B citation is $16.  The proposed fine for a second Class C 
citation is also $16.  He preferred a starting fine of $14.  He expressed a concern with 
discouraging customer visits and a preference to start slow and allow room to grow the fine 
level in the future.  Ald. Hillstrom noted that the task force preferred the higher fine level 
because they see the employee abuse.  Traffic Engineer Merten noted that there would be a  



Public Services and Safety Committee Meeting 
December 13, 2016 
Page 3 
 
credit card processing fee of about $2 per transaction and a NuPark processing fee of $2 per 
citation.  Committee discussed the single citation issuance provision.  Chief Wilkinson 
suggested changing the 24-Hour reset to 4-Hour reset. 
 
Committee discussed the processing charges.  Traffic Engineer Merten noted that a new credit 
card vendor is being discussed. 
 
Ald. Pollnow addressed the Committee to request clarification of the citation appeal process.  
Chief Wilkinson stated that the basic process will remain the same but that appeals will need 
to be filed online.  He stated that NuPark offered an appeal review service but that staff felt that 
better customer service could be provided by keeping appeal processing in-house. 
 
Traffic Engineer Merten reviewed the parking permit provisions.  He noted that these areas 
would be exempt from enforcement on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  Committee 
discussed the proposal to allow the registering of 3 license plates per permit.  Committee 
discussed using a rolling expiration date for permits rather that a fixed date.  Traffic Engineer 
Merten noted the proposal to increase the base monthly permit charge from $18 to $22 per 
month.  He noted that the permit fee structure encouraged the purchase of quarterly or annual 
permits.  On questioning from the Committee, Traffic Engineer Merten stated that he would 
provide revenue projections for the new permit rate structure. 
 
Traffic Engineer Merten described the provisions for re-parking restrictions.  Committee 
suggested standardizing the reset point.  They noted the difficulty in making this provision clear 
to parkers.  Mayor Kaufert expressed a concern with the provision’s impacts on hospitality 
businesses. 
 
The consensus of the Committee was to have Traffic Engineer Merten prepare the necessary 
ordinance changes incorporating the Committee comments for discussion at a future meeting. 
 
 
Licenses: 
Beverage Operator License Applications:  The Committee reviewed the beverage operator 
license applications for Sally A. Bauer, Kami J. Friebel, Joshua A. Malson, Deanna L. Raatz, 
Sandra A. Sha and Jonathan J. Trepanier.   
 
Following discussion, Motion/Second/Carried Lendrum/Hillstrom to recommend Council 
approve beverage operator license applications for Sally A. Bauer, Kami J. Friebel, 
Joshua A. Malson, Deanna L. Raatz, Sandra A. Sha and Jonathan J. Trepanier.  All voting 
aye. 
 
Secondhand Article/Jewelry Dealer License Applications:   
Committee reviewed the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for Don Father 
Games, 1152 Westowne Drive, Don A. Pavelka, owner.   
 
 

C
.A

. 



C
.A

. 
C

.A
. 

C
.A

. 
C

.A
. 

C
.A

. 
C

.A
.

Public Services and Safety Committee Meeting 
December 13, 2016 
Page 4 
 
Following discussion, Motion/ Second/Carried Lang/Stevenson to recommend Council 
approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for Don Father Games, 
1152 Westowne Drive, Don A. Pavelka, owner.  All voting aye. 
 
Committee reviewed the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for J. Anthony 
Jewelers, 220 S. Commercial Street, Joseph A. Ziemba, owner.   
 
Following discussion, Motion/ Second/Carried Lang/Stevenson to recommend Council 
approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for J. Anthony Jewelers, 
220 S. Commercial Street, Joseph A. Ziemba, owner.  All voting aye. 
 
Committee reviewed the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for Holt's Jewelry, 
121 W. Wisconsin Avenue, Mark S. Holt, owner.   
 
Following discussion, Motion/Second/ Carried Lang/Stevenson to recommend Council 
approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for Holt's Jewelry, 121 W. 
Wisconsin Avenue, Mark S. Holt, owner.  All voting aye. 
 
Committee reviewed the secondhand article/jeweler dealer license application for Great 
Estates, 1554 S. Commercial Street, Michael C. Russell, owner.   
 
Following discussion, Motion/ Second/Carried Lang/Stevenson to recommend Council 
approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license application for Great Estates, 
1554 S. Commercial Street, Michael C. Russell, owner.  All voting aye. 
 
Committee reviewed the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for EcoATM, LLC, 
1155 W. Winneconne Avenue, Hunter Bjorkman, owner.   
 
Following discussion, Motion/Second/ Carried Lang/Stevenson to recommend Council 
approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for EcoATM, LLC, 1155 
W. Winneconne Avenue, Hunter Bjorkman, owner.  All voting aye. 
 
Committee reviewed the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for AE Jewelers, 
971 S. Green Bay Road, Richard L. Meyer, owner.   
 
Following discussion, Motion/Second/ Carried Lang/Stevenson to recommend Council 
approve the secondhand article/jewelry dealer license renewal for AE Jewelers, 971 S. 
Green Bay Road, Richard L. Meyer, owner.  All voting aye. 
 
Beverage Operator License Application (New) - Delinquent Fees:  The Committee reviewed 
the beverage operator license application for Alexander Rasmussen.  Mr. Rasmussen currently 
has a delinquent payment of $10.00 (no proof of insurance ticket-2013). 
 
Following discussion, Motion/Second/Carried Stevenson/Lendrum to recommend Council 
approve the beverage operator license application (new) for Alexander Rasmussen  C
.A

. 



Public Services and Safety Committee Meeting 
December 13, 2016 
Page 5 
 
contingent upon payment of a delinquent payment of $10.00 and any other outstanding 
City fees.  All voting aye. 
 
Public Works General Construction and Department Activity: 
1. (Contract 1-16, Franklin, Higgins, Columbian, Henry and Lincoln)  All work is complete.  A 

final pay estimate was taken to the Board of Public Works. 
2. (Contract 4-16, Concrete Pavement and Sidewalk Repair)  Work is complete.  A final 

estimate was taken to the Board of Public Works. 
3. (Contract 5-16, Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement Repair)  Work is complete.  A final estimate was 

taken to the Board of Public Works. 
4. Forest Manor Lighting - Staff is awaiting information design and cost information from We 

Energies.  Once that is received and reviewed, an assessment report will be brought to 
Committee. 

5. Training Center/Clinic – The building upgrades to Fire 31 are well underway.  Plumbing and 
electrical rough-ins are complete.  Window sills are being replaced.  Painting is nearly 
complete.  Work should be near completion by Christmas. 

6. Tullar Garage Floor Coating – The north vehicle storage bay is complete.  Due to 
temperature limitations and equipment storage needs, the south vehicle storage bay will be 
done as soon as weather allows in 2017. 

7. Clock Tower – It has been determined that the clock tower controller is not repairable.  It 
appears that the primary circuit board was damaged by a high voltage event, possibly a 
lightning strike.  That controller is no longer made, so repairing it is not an option.  A new 
controller from that manufacturer costs about $5,000.  We are looking at other controller 
options. 

8. Demolition has started on Martens Street properties. 
9. Woodside Green Estates – Road graveling should be complete next week.  The developer 

is responsible for snow removal on the section north of Buttonbush Drive until the road is in 
a condition that will allow plowing by Winnebago County. 

 
 
Announcements/Future Agenda Items:  Committee discussed the meeting date for December 
27.  The consensus was to forego a meeting that night. 
 
 
Motion/Second/Carried Hillstrom/Stevenson to adjourn at 9:45 p.m.  All voting aye. 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 
 Gerry Kaiser 
 Director of Public Works 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 



CITY OF NEENAH 
FINANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, December 12, 2016 – 7:00 p.m.  
Hauser Room, Neenah City Administration Building 

211 Walnut Street, Neenah, Wisconsin 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
Present:  Chairman Pollow; Aldermen Erickson, Stevenson, Kunz and Boyette; City 
Attorney Godlewski; Director of Finance Easker. 
 
Others Present:  Aldermen Hillstrom and Lendrum, Deputy Director of Community 
Development and Assessment Schmidt, Director of Public Works Kaiser, Director of Parks 
and Recreation Kading and Director of Information Systems Wenninger, Phil Langohr, 
Sarah Milburn. 
 
Public Appearances:  None. 
 
Minutes:  Motion/Second/Carried Erickson/Boyette to approve the minutes from the 
November 28, 2016 Regular Meeting and the December 7, 2016 Special Meeting.  All 
voting aye. 
 
Interagency Agreement to Provide Weights & Measures Inspections:   Committee 
reviewed memo of Director Haese recommending Council authorize the appropriate City 
Officials to enter into an Inter-Agency Agreement with the City of Oshkosh to provide 
Weights and Measures Inspections, documentation and reporting services in a not to 
exceed amount of $16,000 with said funds coming from the 2016 Weights and Measures 
Operating Budget.  The agreement is needed to provide the annual inspection services 
that have fallen behind due to the City Sealer position remaining vacant for the past twelve 
months. Director Haese indicated that various options were considered prior to 
recommending this agreement. 
 
Committee and staff discussed various aspects of the proposed agreement.  Issues 
discussed included the reasons for the delay in both hiring for the position and bringing 
forward this service agreement, the skills necessary for the position and how the Weights 
and Measures/Code Enforcement position approved for 2017 will schedule hours for each 
function.  Discussion also took place on the contract language regarding additional costs 
above the $16,000 contract price for mileage and other reasonable expenses. 
 
Motion/Second/Carried Stevenson/Erickson to recommend Council authorize the 
appropriate City Officials to enter into an Inter-Agency Agreement with the City of 
Oshkosh to provide Weights and Measures Inspections, documentation and 
reporting services in a not to exceed amount of $16,000 with said funds coming 
from the 2016 Weights and Measures Operating Budget.  All voting aye. 
 
Land Request – 302 E. Wisconsin:  Committee reviewed memo of Director Kaiser 
recommending Council approve the sale of land adjacent to the Oak Street Bridge to 
Philip Langohr, 302 E. Wisconsin Avenue, for the agreed net price of $5,056.  The land 
had been purchased by the City in the 1940’s.  As part of the transaction, the City will 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 



Minutes of the Meeting of the Finance and Personnel Committee 
December 12, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 
retain a permanent easement over the 10-foot strip to allow for maintenance of the 
retaining wall for the Oak Street Bridge approach.  Committee and staff discussed various 
aspects of the proposed land sale.  Attorney Godlewski indicated that it is also likely 
necessary for the City Plan Commission to review and report to the Common Council on 
the side.  
 
Motion/Second/Carried Stevenson/Boyette to recommend Council approve the 
sale of land adjacent to the Oak Street Bridge to Philip Langohr, 302 E. Wisconsin 
Avenue, for the agreed net price of $5,056.  All voting aye. 
 
Potential Property Acquisition – 402 West North Water Street:   Committee 
reviewed memos of Director Kading and Director Haese.  Director Kading is 
recommending Council to approve the offer to purchase in the amount of $130,000 for 
the acquisition of 402 West North Water Street to facilitate the Loop the Lake/Trestle 
project.  The project would also need $10,000 for demolition for a total cost of $140,000.  
The proposed purchase was first presented to the Council in October to facilitate the 
location of the new trestle in relationship to current sewer lines, develop cost savings for 
the Trestle/Loop the Lake construction project, and create a more park-like landing for 
the new trestle once the project is completed on North Water Street.  Directors Kading 
and Haese are recommending the total cost be funded from unspent TIF 10 funds that 
were borrowed for redevelopment assistance.  Director Haese indicated that this 
purchase along with other land purchases in TIF 10 could require additional TIF 10 
funding of up to $335,000 by the end of 2017. 
 
Committee and staff discussed various aspects of the proposed purchase.  Issues 
discussed included the concern regarding the potential for sewer line disruption from the 
trestle project if the land is not secured, as well as the negotiations with the land owner 
that resulted in the final purchase price of $130,000.  Chairman Pollnow and Alderman 
Kunz both expressed a desire to have greater clarity on how funding for this purchase 
could be tied to the larger $3.2 million financing of the entire joint trestle project with 
Menasha.  This included discussion regarding state grant funding as well as the private 
fundraising being organized through Future Neenah.  Director Kading said he would 
update the committee as to the status of the financing in the near future.      
 
Motion/Second/Carried Stevenson/Kunz to recommend Council approve the offer 
to purchase in the amount of $130,000 for the acquisition of 402 West North Water 
Street to facilitate the Loop the Lake/Trestle project plus $10,000 for demolition on 
the site, with the $140,000 total cost funded by repurposing unspent TIF 10 funds 
that were initially borrowed for redevelopment assistance.  Motion carried 4-1, with 
Chairman Pollnow voting no.   
 
Controlled Access to City Hall:  Committee reviewed memo of Director Wenninger 
requesting authorization to proceed with One Source Technologies to implement 
controlled access at City Hall at a cost not to exceed $47,000.  Funding provided by 
Information Systems 2014 CIP carry forward funds of $25,000 and Preparedness Grant 
funds of $22,000.  The project was initially authorized by the Common Council on August 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 
R

E
P

O
R

T



Minutes of the Meeting of the Finance and Personnel Committee 
December 12, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
5, 2015.  Subsequent discussions about the potential of the joint employee health clinic 
with the Neenah Joint School District residing in City Hall delayed final implementation 
due to building access issues.  The updated costs include: 
 
1). An increase of $6,048 to enable the added control of both lobby doors on the south 
and north entrances;  
 
2). An increase of $4,182 for additional labor costs for the external fire stairwell doors;  
 
3). An increase of $8,400 for elevator access to install wiring that was assumed to be in 
place at the initial walkthrough; and  
 
4). An increase of $2,042 for ADA requirements missed at the initial walkthrough. 
 
Committee and staff discussed various aspects of the proposed implementation.  Items 
discussed included an extensive discussion on all of the factors that contributed to the 
increased costs, including looking at the rationale for why each of the proposed access 
doors within City Hall should be included in the controlled access environment.           
 
Motion/Second/Carried Kunz/Erickson to recommend Council authorize 
proceeding with One Source Technologies to implement controlled access at City 
Hall at a cost not to exceed $47,000.  Funding provided by Information Systems 
2014 CIP carry forward funds of $25,000 and Preparedness Grant funds of $22,000.  
All voting aye. 
 
Accela Electronic Agendas Program Cancellation:  Committee reviewed memo of City 
Attorney Godlewski recommending Council authorize the cancellation of the Accela 
Contract pursuant to ¶4.1 of the Accela Contract.  The recommendation was made as 
part of the ongoing analysis as to whether the Accela product was the best option for the 
City to provide electronic agenda and minutes capability.  Previous discussion between 
staff and Council have revealed various problems and concerns with the product, 
implementation and training with Accela.  Upon final review, staff is recommending 
cancelation of the contract with Accela and proposes the City explore a combination of a 
.pdf editor program with an inexpensive computer application that allows for note taking 
on Council’s iPads. 
 
Committee and staff discussed various aspects of the proposed contract cancellation.  
Specific discussion took place on the strategy the City should take with regard to the 
approximately six months of unpaid invoices from Accela considering that the City has 
never been able to use the product as proposed.  
 
Motion/Second/Carried Stevenson/Erickson to recommend Council authorize the 
cancellation of the Accela Contract pursuant to ¶4.1 of the Accela Contract.  All 
voting aye. 
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 



Minutes of the Meeting of the Finance and Personnel Committee 
December 12, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 
Fiscal Matters: November Voucher Review: Motion/Second/Carried 
Stevenson/Erickson to approve the November vouchers as presented.  All voting 
aye. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:45 p.m. 
 

  Respectfully submitted,   
 

           
         

 Michael K. Easker, CPA 
 Director of Finance 

 
 



Minutes of the Board of Public Works Meeting 
Tuesday, December 13, 2016 – Noon 

Council Chambers 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Kaufert, Director of Finance Easker, Director of Public Works 
Kaiser, Aldermen Hillstrom & Bates.  Director of Community Development & Assessment 
Haese and City Attorney Godlewski were excused.     
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Deputy Clerk Goffard.    
 
Mayor Kaufert called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m.     
 
MINUTES:  MSC Easker/Hillstrom to approve the minutes from the November 7, 2016 
Board of Public Works meeting, all voting aye.   
 
APPEARANCES:  None. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:   
 
Public Works Department:   
 
Change Order No. 5, Contract 1-16:  Dir. Kaiser requested approval of Change Order No. 5 
for Contract 1-16 Miscellaneous Sewer and Water Main Construction and Street 
Construction on Franklin Avenue, Columbian Avenue, Oak Street, Higgins Avenue, Division 
Street, Henry Street, Lincoln Street, Meade Street and Maple Street to Van Straten 
Construction Co., Inc., Green Bay in the amount of $168,184.06.  The change order is for 
miscellaneous sewer and water main construction on Franklin Avenue, Columbian Avenue, 
Oak Street, Higgins Avenue, Division Street, Henry Street, Lincoln Street, Meade Street and 
Maple Street.  The change order is based on final project quantities.  It is a net of all project 
accounts, some that exceeded the original allocation and others that came in below the 
allocation.  Dir. Kaiser reviewed his table summarizing all of the accounts (attached).  The 
original contract was $2,422,611.00.  Previous approved change orders total $82,578.75 
were approved increasing the approved contract to $2,505,189.75. The current change 
order is $168,184.06.  This is an adjustment of 6.7%.  The additional storm sewer, water 
and street work can be covered within the original project budgets for those components.  
The additional costs for sanitary sewer work will be drawn from the account for Sewer 
Repair/Replacement – Various Locations.  He reviewed a number of areas contributing to 
the change order amount and as outlined in the change order:  private lateral work beyond 
bid quantities resulting in a net increase of approximately $70,000 - all of this work is 
assessable; sidewalk/driveway repairs beyond bid quantity resulting in a net increase of 
approximately $60,000 - some of this work is assessable, some of the work was related to 
the WE Energies gas main/service replacement and was charged to WE Energies – this 
work can affect not only the sidewalk quantities but also can increase the Terracing bid item; 
an error in the bid quantity listed for the sanitary replacement on Division Street – the bid 
included a quantity of 30 linear feet for 12-inch sanitary sewer however the plan quantity 
was actually 334 feet which resulted in an increase of $27,000; and additional street repair 
on Maple Street beyond the original planned which was an increase of approximately 
$7,500.   



Board of Public Works Minutes 
December 13, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Public Works Director Kaiser presented an updated summary of the 2016 budget amounts 
for construction within the City of Neenah for 2016. 
 
MSC Kaiser/Bates to approve Change Order No. 5 for Contract 1-16 Miscellaneous 
Sewer and Water Main Construction and Street Construction on Franklin Avenue, 
Columbian Avenue, Oak Street, Higgins Avenue, Division Street, Henry Street, 
Lincoln Street, Meade Street and Maple Street to Van Straten Construction Co., Inc., 
Green Bay in the amount of $168,184.06, all voting aye.  
 
Final Payment for Contract 1-16:  Dir. Kaiser requested approval of the Final Payment for 
Contract 1-16 Miscellaneous Sewer and Water Main Construction and Street Construction 
on Franklin Avenue, Columbian Avenue, Oak Street, Higgins Avenue, Division Street, Henry 
Street, Lincoln Street, Meade Street and Maple Street to Van Straten Construction Co., Inc., 
Green Bay in the amount of $175,119.86.  This final payment includes the previous change 
order. 
 
MSC Easker/Hillstrom to recommend Council approve the Final Payment for Contract 
1-16 Miscellaneous Sewer and Water Main Construction and Street Construction on 
Franklin Avenue, Columbian Avenue, Oak Street, Higgins Avenue, Division Street, 
Henry Street, Lincoln Street, Meade Street and Maple Street to Van Straten 
Construction Co., Inc., Green Bay in the amount of $175,119.86, all voting aye.  
 
Final Payment for Contract 4-16:  Dir. Kaiser requested approval of the Final Payment for 
Contract 4-16 Concrete Pavement & Sidewalk Repair to Fischer-Ulman Construction, 
Appleton in the amount of $163,136.62.  
 
MSC Kaiser/Hillstrom to recommend Council approve the Final Payment for Contract 4-
16 Concrete Pavement & Sidewalk Repair to Fischer-Ulman Construction, Appleton 
in the amount of $163,136.62, all voting aye.  
 
Final Payment for Contract 5-16:  Dir. Kaiser requested approval of the Final Payment for 
Contract 5-16 HMA Patching Repair to Northeast Asphalt in the amount of $138,237.74.  
 
MSC Kaiser/Bates to recommend Council approve the Final Payment for Contract 5-16 
Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Pavement Repair to Northeast Asphalt, Greenville in the 
amount of $138,237.74, all voting aye.  
 
MSC Easker/Kaiser to adjourn at 12:18 p.m., all voting aye. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

          
        

Laurie Goffard 
Deputy Clerk 



Board of Public Works Minutes 
December 13, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 































F:\CLERK\WPDATA\Council\Council Directives\Council Directives.docx                                                                                                                 

STATUS OF COUNCIL DIRECTIVES ISSUED SINCE JULY 1, 1981 
 

Date:  December 21, 2016 
 
Date of Directive: 12/18/2013  

 
  Item: Direct the Community Development Department to  
  Engage the Parking Task Force, Public Works and Police Dept.  
  and utilize budgeted dollars to hire a consultant to gain  
  an outside and expert opinion to complete the following:    
  Identify current parking dynamics including parking inventory,  
  current agreements, needs, resources, behaviors and  
  expectations and present those findings to the Public  
  Services & Safety Committee prior to March 31, 2014;  
  and utilize the consultant’s information to propose a  
  comprehensive parking plan to address current competing  
  needs for customers, employees and residents, developing  
  expectations for all groups based on comparables and best  
  practices, strategies to best utilize the city’s resources and  
  solutions to acquire, maintain, and control an adequate  
  parking inventory.  In conjunction, propose a comprehensive  
  parking plan to address current demands and encourage  
  future downtown development including:  proposed parking  
  sites and facilities; financial implications and solutions;  
  and timelines and stages.  Both portions of the  
  comprehensive parking plan will be presented to the Council  
  prior to July 31, 2014. 
   
  Responsible Party: Ald. Kunz 
 
  Status:  Pending 

 
 

Date of Directive:  10/05/2016 
 

  Item: Review the street assessment policy – Ordinance  
  Chapter 13.5(D) (2). 

 
  Responsible Party: Ald. Pollnow 

 
  Status:  Pending 

 


	1 Agenda
	2 161213 PSSC minutes
	3 161212 F&P minutes
	4 161213 Bd of PW minutes
	5 Final Pmt Cont 1-16
	6 Final Pmt Cont 4-16
	7 Final Pmt Cont 5-16
	8 Council Directives

